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I would like to thank all our staff and partners for their continued efforts and recognise that 
many of them have been working in a highly pressurised environment on a sustained basis 
over this last year. I would also like to acknowledge that this environment has meant we 
have not always been able to provide the level and responsiveness of care and service that 
we commit to in our vision to provide an outstanding experience. I am confident, however, 
that the dedication of our teams and support from system partners will enable us to take 
further positive steps to achieving the best possible health outcomes for our local 
populations. 

 
 
 
 
 
Stacey Hunter  
Chief Executive (Accounting Officer)  
16/06/2022 (on behalf of the Trust Board)  
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Salisbury Trading Limited provides a laundry service to Salisbury District Hospital and other 
NHS organisations. The Trust also works with other organisations in joint ventures. For 
instance, we work with our Acute Hospital Alliance partners, the Great Western Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust and the Royal United Hospitals Bath NHS Foundation Trust to provide adult 
community services across Wiltshire through Wiltshire Health and Care. It also works with 
Sterile Supplies Ltd to provide sterilisation and disinfection services to Salisbury District 
Hospital and other NHS organisations. Our procurement and payroll services provide support 
for a number of local NHS organisations.  
 
The Stars Appeal is the official NHS Charity for Salisbury District Hospital. The Stars Appeal 
has been integral to our pandemic response, funding projects and distributing care packages 
which bring the hospital and our community together and make a positive impact on the lives 
of the people we serve and the staff who work at the Trust. The Stars Appeal has also been 
our primary link to NHS Charities Together throughout the course of the pandemic and we are 
extremely grateful for the charitable support that has been provided to enhance the care we 
provide. In 2021-22, we have implemented a wide-ranging governance review of the charity 
to establish a renewed vision, mission, goals and objectives.  
 
Our Role in the Bath, North East Somerset, Swindon and Wiltsh ire Partnership (BSW)  
 
We have made strides towards the statutory recognition of BSW as an Integrated Care Board 
from 1 July 2022. We recognise that we need to balance a system partnership approach with 
�W�K�H�� �7�U�X�V�W�¶�V�� �S�U�L�R�U�L�W�L�H�V�� �D�Q�G�� �S�U�R�P�R�W�H�� �U�H�O�D�W�L�R�Q�V�K�L�S�V�� ���I�R�Umal and informal), clinical pathways and 
NHS structural reform which support solutions to our local challenges.  
 
In order to achieve an outstanding experience in our health system, integrating service 
provision across BSW and locally in Wiltshire offers the best opportunity of addressing the 
challenges that lie ahead. This transformation approach has continued, and COVID-19 has 
accelerated an ever-closer collaboration between community services, Wiltshire Council and 
our local Primary Care Networks. The Trust has a shared vision for improving health and care 
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IPC and ongoing designation of 
beds limits flexibility on delivery of 
elective care 

Uncertainty over future referral 
patterns and impact on waiting 
lists 

�‡



Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                     

 

 
 

15 
 

Workforce development is the most important element to enabling the whole NHS to deliver 
the increases in activity outlined in the guidance. The greatest risk posed to delivery is a 
general shortage of clinically qualified staff which existed before and has been exacerbated 
by the pandemic. Layered on top is the sustained pressure and high infection rates which 
impact retention and absence from work. Without due attention to stabilising and rebuilding 
the workforce as we emerge out of the pandemic, the national priorities, and our local plans, 
will not be achievable. 

Ultimately, our plan for 2022-23 is based on a series of balances �± a commitment to move 
forward with the Trust strategy and make progress against our priorities of People, 
Population and Partnerships, renewed drive for improvement through Improving Together, a 
clear and ambitious national expectation for elective recovery and a recognition that the 
pandemic has increased our challenges in managing non-elective activity and the inter-
relationships between acute hospital care and community and social care services. In 
managing these balances, we have submitted a plan that does not fully achieve with the 
national recovery requirements and seeks to manage a significant £18m planned deficit but 
represents a realistic view of the activity recovery and workforce sustainability that the Trust 
can achieve in the next 12 months.  
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PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS   
 
The Trust publishes a monthly Integrated Performance Report (IPR) which provides both the 
Board and the public with an overview of our performance. The report is structured around 
the strategic and enabling priorities identified by the Trust, and divided into performance 
sections of Operational, Quality, Workforce and Resources. The report evolves to reflect 
new areas of monitoring or national focus.  

Our monthly integrated performance reports are available on our website as part of monthly 
Board papers and can be downloaded via: 
 
https://www.salisbury.nhs.uk/about-us/the-trust-board/board-papers/ 
 
Each of the four performance sections of the IPR are presented at Board Committees, and 
then brought together into one integrated document for presentation and scrutiny at Trust 
Board. The statistical process charts allow our Board and Committees to see trend analysis 
for the previous 24 months, which in an extraordinary year affected by the presence of 
COVID-19 provides more depth and understanding around our performance. 
 
Performance overview  
 

COVID-19 bed occupancy  
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department increased the number of Same Day Emergency Care pathways they were able 
to access.  
 

 
 
The number of patients who were treated and discharged or admitted within 4 hours from the 
Emergency Department reduced throughout the year. The Trust did not achieve the 95% 
national target, however, the performance of our departments compared favourably with the 
average for acute trusts in England.  
 

 
 
Bed occupancy levels in the Trust remained high throughout the year, with continued impact 
from COVID-19 and high numbers of inpatients no longer requiring acute care but waiting for 
alternative care options outside of the hospital. High occupancy levels in the Trust put 
pressure on flow from the Emergency Department into the hospital for patients requiring 
admission, and as a result there was an increase in the number of ambulances that were 
delayed handing over patients into the Emergency Department.  
 

Elective waiting times  
Referrals 
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A significant reduction in referrals was seen immediately post-pandemic, and although they 
have continued to rise, they are yet to exceed levels pre-pandemic. The Trust continued to 
build on its communication and relationships with GP practices to ensure awareness of 
service availability.  
 

 
 

Two Week Wait Suspected Cancer referrals 
 
The volume of cancer referrals received by the Trust has continued to rise following the 
initial reduction in the first wave of the pandemic, and by the end of the year had recovered 
to pre-pandemic levels. The 93% two-week standard was not achieved consistently 
throughout the year, with particular challenges in the Breast tumour site. Average waiting 
times for Breast two week wait services were around 16-17 days, with minimal impact upon 
the 31- or 62-
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Cancer 62 Day standard �± referral to first definitive treatment 
 
Cancer services were protected throughout the pandemic the proportion of patients on a 
cancer pathway who received their first treatment within 62 Days remained broadly static 
overall, but not consistently achieving the standard. The trust benchmarks above the acute 
trusts England average, but continues to strive towards further improvement in cancer 
waiting times. 
 

 
 

Elective waiting lists (Referral to Treatment)  
 
The Trust has maintained focus on restoring elective activity levels in order to reduce 
the number, and length of time patients are waiting for elective surgery.  A clinical 
prioritisation framework is used to ensure that clinically urgent patients are identified 
and treated within appropriate timeframes. The total waiting list size has been 
maintained despite increasing elective referrals, and challenges in increasing 
elective activity when the Trust is operating in excess of 95% bed occupancy levels.  
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The number of patients waiting longer than 52 weeks for a first treatment has reduced from 
1059 in Apr 21, to 599 by Mar 22, and the number waiting over 78 weeks peaked at 264, 
reducing to 107 by Mar 22. There remains a small number of patients waiting over 104 
weeks (three by Mar 22) which have been complex cases.  Progress has been made in 
restoring theatre activity which has been complicated by challenges in recruitment and high 
absence rates for theatre staff.  
 
 

 
 
 
Tackling Inequalities  
 
Reducing inequalities in access to healthcare and clinical outcomes is a central theme in the 
NHS recovery plans from the COVID pandemic. Reducing inequalities is one of our 4 
strategic initiatives, and a Health Inequalities Group, chaired by the Chief Medical Officer, 
has been established to oversee work in this area. Our initial focus has been: 
 

�‡ Consideration of how we address inequalities through clinical prioritisation and 
access to our elective care and maternity services. We are required to compile a 
system Equalities and Health Inequalities Impact Assessment relating to Elective 
Recovery plans and this will be completed by 30 June 2022.  
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ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT  
 

�'�,�5�(�&�7�2�5�6�¶���5�(�3�2�5�7 
 
Board of Directors  
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�1�+�6���,�P�S�U�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W�¶�V���:�H�O�O���/�H�G���)�U�D�P�H�Z�R�U�N�� 
 
The Trust has co�Q�V�L�G�H�U�H�G���1�+�6���,�P�S�U�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W�¶�V���Z�H�O�O-led framework in arriving at its overall 
�H�Y�D�O�X�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���R�U�J�D�Q�L�V�D�W�L�R�Q�¶�V���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���D�Q�G���L�Q���G�H�Y�H�O�R�S�L�Q�J���L�W�V���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K���W�R���L�Q�W�H�U�Q�D�O��
control, board assurance framework and the governance of quality.  
 
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) undertook an inspection of the well-led question in 
�'�H�F�H�P�E�H�U�������������D�Q�G���U�D�W�H�G���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W���D�V���µ�*�R�R�G�¶�����7�K�H���&�4�&���V�W�D�W�H�G���W�K�D�W���µ�7�K�H�U�H���Z�D�V���H�I�I�H�F�W�L�Y�H����
experienced and skilled leadership, a strong vision for the organisation and embedded 
values. The leadership had the capacity and capability to deliver high-quality sustainable 
care. Leaders understood the challenges to quality and sustainability and they were visible 
and approachable. There was a clear vision for the T�U�X�V�W���D�Q�G���V�W�U�R�Q�J���Y�D�O�X�H�V���¶ 
 
During 2021-22, the Trust has focussed on the response to the COVID-19 pandemic and 
there have also been a number of changes to the Executive Directors. Acknowledging this, 
there was Trust Board agreement to undertake a self-assessment against the well-led 
framework in October 2021. An external well-led review will be commissioned in Autumn 
2022.  
 
�7�K�H���$�Q�Q�X�D�O���*�R�Y�H�U�Q�D�Q�F�H���6�W�D�W�H�P�H�Q�W���G�H�V�F�U�L�E�H�V���L�Q���I�X�U�W�K�H�U���G�H�W�D�L�O���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���D�S�S�U�R�D�F�K���W�R��
ensuring services are well-led and quality governance. The Quality Account describes 
quality improvements in more detail. 
                                                                                              
Other disclosures  
 
Modern Slavery Act 202 1-22 annual statement  
 
At the Trust we are committed to ensuring that no modern slavery or human trafficking takes 
place in any part of our business or our supply chain. We are fully aware of the 
responsibilities we hold towards our service users, employees, and local communities. We 
are guided by a strict set of ethical values in all our business dealings and expect our 
suppliers (i.e., all companies that we do business with) to adhere to these same principles. 
We have zero tolerance for slavery and human trafficking.  
 
Cost all ocation and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury  
 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has complied with the cost allocation and charging 
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Information on fees and charges   
 
Please see table below which provides an aggregate of all schemes that, individually, have 
cost exceeding £1million.   
 

  2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 
 Expected sign     
Income + 14,028 13,065 14,535 
Full cost - 





Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                     

 

 
 

26 
 





Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                     

 

 
 

28 
 

strategic goals stated in 
the basic salary 
component.  

Bonus N/A N/A N/A 

Fees N/A N/A N/A 
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Name Role 
  

Attendance 
from six 
meetings  

Nick Marsden   Chairman  6/6 

Rakhee Aggarwal Non-
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There were no taxable benefits paid to Directors in the year. Salary for Executive Directors 
includes any amount received for car allowance.  
 
There is no additional benefit that will become receivable by a director in the event that that 
senior manager retires early. 
 
This table i s subject to audit  
 
Remuneration 1 April 2020 �± 31 March 2021  
 

 Salary 
and fees  
 
(Bands 
of 
£5,000) 
 
£000 

Taxable 
Benefits 
Rounded 
to the 
nearest 
£100 
 
 

Annual 
Performance 
Related 
Bonus  
 
(Bands of 
£5,000) 
£000 

Long term 
Performance 
Related 
Bonus  
 
(Bands of 
£5,000) 
£000 

Pension 
Related 
Benefits  
 
 
(Bands of 
£2,500) 
£000 
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Pension Benefits  
 

This table is subject to audit  
 
Notes to Remuneration and Pension Tables    
 
Susan Young chose not to be covered by the pension arrangements during the reporting 
year. 
 
As Non-Executive directors do not receive pensionable remuneration, there are no entries in 
respect of any pensions. 
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The banded remuneration of the highest paid director was 5.79 (restated) times the median 
remuneration of the workforce in 2020-21. The Trust's median remuneration reduced in 
2021-
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STAFF REPORT  
  
Analysis of average staff costs (subject to audit)   
 

 Total  
2021/22 

£000 

Permanently 
employed Total  

£000 

Other Total  
 

£000 
Salaries and wages  151,408 151,408 0 

Social security costs  14,788 14,788 0 

Pension cost - defined contribution 
�S�O�D�Q�V���H�P�S�O�R�\�H�U�¶�V���F�R�Q�W�U�L�E�X�W�L�R�Q�V���W�R��
NHS pensions  

17,123 17,123 0 

�3�D�L�G���E�\���1�+�6�(���R�Q���S�U�R�Y�L�G�H�U�¶�V���E�H�K�D�O�I��
(6.3%) 

7,460 7,460 0 

Pension cost �± other  42 42 0 

Temporary staff/agency contract 
staff  

7735 0 7,735 

Apprenticeship levy  737 737 0 

TOTAL STAFF COSTS  199,293 191,558 7,735 

Less: Costs capitalised as part of 
assets  

(758) 
 

(758) 0 

TOTAL STAFF COSTS IN 
OPERATING EXPENDITURE 

198,535 
 

190,800 7,735 

 
Analysis of average staff numbers (subject to audit)   
 

  

Total 
2021/ 
2022 

number  

Permanently 
employed  
2021/ 2022   

number  

Other  
2021/ 
2022 

number  

Total 
2020/ 
2021 

number  

Permanently 
employed 
2020/2021 
number  

Other 
2020/ 
2021 

number  

Medical and 
Dental  

459 450 9 444 432 12 
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staff overseas and inward secondments where the organisation is paying the whole or the 
majority of their costs. 

The comparative numbers have been restated to bring them in line with the occupation 
codes within the electronic staff record, the NHS human resource and payroll database 
system. 

The number of male and female directors, senior managers and employees at 31 
March 2022  

Head Count  Female Male Total  

Directors  7 7 14 

*Senior managers  6 4 10 

All other staff  3722 1178 4,900 

*Senior managers are defined as members of the Trust Management Committee which 
provides a forum for the Chief Executive, supported by the Executive Directors and Clinical 
�'�L�U�H�F�W�R�U�V�����W�R���D�G�Y�L�V�H���R�Q���W�K�H���V�W�U�D�W�H�J�L�F���G�L�U�H�F�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W���D�Q�G���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���L�Q�Y�R�O�Y�H�P�H�Q�W���L�Q���W�K�H��
wider health economy. Senior managers in this context include members of the Trust 
Management Committee who are not included in the two remaining groups. 
 
Staff Turnover  

Staff turnover information can be found on the NHS Digital website: 

https://digital.nhs.uk/data-and-information/publications/statistical/nhs-workforce-statistics  

 

Sickness Absence  

Year April March Overall 
absence 
days lost 

%of total 
available 
days 

% Short term 

<28 days 

% Long term  

>28 days 

Absence 
Recorded 
with No 
reason 
given 

20/21 27,491 3.75% 2.03% 1.72% 4.36%  

21/22 31,218 4.15% 2.11% 2.04% 3.25% 

22/23 Forecast 29,738 3.95% 1.95% 2.00% 3.00% 

Between April 2021 and March 2022, the Trust has experienced the impact of an Increase in 
sickness absence levels from 27,491 working days lost in 2020-21, to 31,218 days lost in 
2022-23.   

It remains our aim to reduce sickness absence to our stretch target of 3%.  During 2021 -22 
�D�E�V�H�Q�F�H���U�D�W�H�V���L�Q�F�U�H�D�V�H�G���D�E�R�Y�H���W�K�H���S�U�H�Y�L�R�X�V���\�H�D�U�¶�V���O�H�Y�H�O���R�I���������������W�R�����������������:�L�W�K�L�Q���W�K�L�V��
figure, 2.11% related to short term absence whilst long term absence accounts for 2.04% in 
total.  We saw significant absence in January to March 2022 due to COVID-19 

Overall, COVID-�������K�D�V���L�P�S�D�F�W�H�G���V�L�F�N�Q�H�V�V���D�E�V�H�Q�F�H���U�D�W�H�V���G�X�U�L�Q�J���W�K�L�V���S�H�U�L�R�G�����7�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V��
Occupational Health Department has been following up on cases of COVID-19 for contact 
tracing and ensuring compliance with the Government regulations of the time regarding 
isolation and testing.  Pro-active support for staff on long term sickness has been a focus 
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during the year, in particular in quarter 4, where additional support of wellbeing phone calls 
has been put in place. Clinical Psychology services have also been offering wellbeing 
interventions to staff as a supportive mechanism of preventing sickness absence.   

Managers can view team absence data via ESR Manager Self Service. This tool highlights 
the number of episodes of sickness absence, enabling managers to identify where additional 
interventions and support are required. Data is also shared with staff side representatives on 
a regular basis. 

Over a fifth of our workforce absence was due to mental ill health and we are aware that 
some employees experience personal stress and/or work-related stress.  The Trust offers a 
range of proactive wellbeing initiatives to promote better health and wellbeing for all 
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Regular consultation takes place with staff and staff representatives in relation to policy 
changes and organisational change policy consultation is also �G�L�V�F�X�V�V�H�G���Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V��
Inclusion Network.  �7�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���F�R�X�Q�W�H�U���I�U�D�X�G���V�S�H�F�L�D�O�L�V�W�V���U�H�F�H�L�Y�H���D�O�O���+�5���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V���J�R�L�Q�J���I�R�U��
ratification and are consulted on those relating to counter fraud 

In January 2022 a comprehensive review of 66 OD & People policies commenced to ensure 
legal compliance, and that policies are in line with Trust values and the NHS People Promise 
and the aim for a restorative just and learning culture. This work is scheduled to be completed 
by the end of quarter 1 2022
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Consultancy Expenditure - Off Payroll Payments  
 

Table 1: Highly paid off -payroll worker engagements as at 31 March 2022 earning £245 
per day or greater    

For all off -payroll engagements as of 31 March 2022  

  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2022 124 

Of which: 

Number that have existed for less than one year at the time of 
reporting 

114 

Number that have existed for between one and two years at the 
time of reporting 

2 

 

Number that have existed for between 2 and 3 years at the time 
of reporting 

3 

 

Number that have existed for between 3 and 4 years at the time 
of reporting 

3 

Number that have existed for 4 or more years at the time of 
reporting 

3 

 

Table 2: All highly paid off -payroll workers engaged at any point during the year ended 
31 March 2022 earning £245 per day or greater.   

  Number 

Number of off
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No. of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following the 
consistency review 

0 

Table 3: Off -payroll board member/senior official engagements   

For any off -
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There has been a small increase in the number of staff declaring themselves as LGBTQ+ 
(89 in 2022 compared with 85 in 2020).  

The Freedom to Speak Up Service is provided by the Trust to empower staff to raise a 
�F�R�Q�F�H�U�Q���R�X�W�V�L�G�H���R�I���D�Q���L�Q�G�L�Y�L�G�X�D�O�¶�V���P�D�Q�D�J�H�P�H�Q�W���F�K�D�Ln should they require it.  The service is 
led by a Freedom to Speak Up Guardian, supported by a team of Ambassadors.  The remit 
of the service is to support the development of a culture that is open and transparent so that 
raising concerns becomes business as usual for all staff.  The Trust's Guardian is 
responsible for providing confidential advice and support to staff in relation to any concerns 
about patient safety or any concern that has a detrimental effect on their working conditions.  
They can also offer advice and support to ensure concerns raised are handled appropriately 
�D�Q�G���U�H�V�X�O�W���L�Q���D���F�O�H�D�U���R�X�W�F�R�P�H�������7�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V��Freedom to Speak Up Guardian has direct 
access to all senior leaders including the Chief Executive and all Board members.  This year 
the �7�U�X�V�W���K�D�V���V�K�R�Z�Q���F�R�P�P�L�W�P�H�Q�W���W�R���)�U�H�H�G�R�P���W�R���6�S�H�D�N���8�S���E�\���P�D�N�L�Q�J���R�Q�O�L�Q�H���µ�6�S�H�D�N���8�S�¶��
Level 1 training mandatory for all staff ensuring every staff member knows how to raise 
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The range of apprenticeships being utilised across has increased and we have 
apprenticeships available at every academic level and across a range of staff groups. See 
table below 

Table: Demonstrates the range of apprenticeships accessed by Educational Level, and the 
number of apprentices starts each of year on programme.  

Levy utilisation has improved in the last 12 months, and we are on track for a decrease over 
the whole year.  Currently a business case for a Registered Nurse Degree Apprenticeship 
Programme is being considered and if agreed in full will result in additional utilisation of the 
Levy. This will eliminate any expiry of Levy and support us towards a target 100% utilisation. 
SFT has already committed to support a further 
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larger scale than last year and carried out across the South West instead of just the BSW 
region.  

Across BSW since April 2021, there has been 
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Percentage of pay bill on facility time          

Total cost of facility time £26,937.67 

Total pay bill £198.154m 

Percentage facility time 0.1% 

 
Paid Union Activities   

Time spent  0 
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NHS FOUNDATION TRUST CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
 

Disclosure Statement  
 
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has applied the principles of the NHS Foundation Trust 
Code of Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS Foundation Trust Code of 
Governance, most recently revised in July 2014, is based on the principles of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. 
 
The Board considers that for the 2021-22 year the Trust has been fully compliant with the 
�S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�R�Q�V���R�I���W�K�H���&�R�G�H�����Z�L�W�K���W�K�H���H�[�F�H�S�W�L�R�Q���R�I���S�U�R�Y�L�V�L�R�Q���%�����������W�K�D�W���V�W�D�W�H�V���³�H�Y�D�O�X�D�W�L�R�Q���R�I���W�K�H��
boards of NHS foundation trusts should be exter�Q�D�O�O�\���I�D�F�L�O�L�W�D�W�H�G���D�W���O�H�D�V�W���H�Y�H�U�\���W�K�U�H�H���\�H�D�U�V�´����
An external review was delayed until autumn 2022, given the ongoing executive recruitment 
and the continued focus on COVID-19 recovery. The Trust Board has undertaken a self-
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John Mangan (Lead) New Forest Feb 2018 Three years 4 / 4 

Peter Kosminsky1 Kennet June 2020 Three years 1 / 4 

Mary Clunie Rest of England Feb 2018 Three years 4 / 4 
1 Peter Kosminsky took an agreed leave of absence as agreed by the Chair during 2021/22 and attended whenever possible 
2 Sir Raymond Jack came to the end of his final term of office in May 2021 
3 Dr Jennifer Lisle came to the end of her second term on 31st May 2021 and did not seek re-election  
4 William Holmes came to the end of his first term on 31st May 2021 and did not seek re-election  
 

Elected Governor s - Staff Constituency  
 
Name  Constituency  Elected or 

Re-elected 
Term of 
Office  

Attendance 
from 5 
meetings  

Paul Russell Clerical, Administrative and 
Managerial 

June 2020 One year 4 / 4 

Pearl James1 

 
Volunteers May 2018 Three years 1 / 1 

Jane Podkolinski Volunteers June 2021 
 

Three years 2 / 3 

Jonathan Cullis2 

 
Medical & Dental May 2018 Three years 0 / 1 

Anita Nazeer Medical & Dental June 2021 
 

Three years 1 / 3  

1 / 3 
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A nurse by background Stacey spent several years working in clinical leadership roles 



Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                  



Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                     

 

 
 

59 
 

November 2020. He has worked for a number of large multinational companies, including 
British Airways and Cobham plc, the multinational aerospace and defence company. In 
2018, Paul was appointed as a Justice of the Peace, sitting on the Dorset bench and in 2019 
�W�R�R�N���X�S���W�K�H���U�R�O�H���R�I���7�U�X�V�W�H�H���D�Q�G���+�R�Q�R�U�D�U�\���7�U�H�D�V�X�U�H�U���I�R�U���W�K�H���0�D�J�L�V�W�U�D�W�H�¶�V���$�V�V�R�F�L�D�W�L�R�Q�����D��
charity supporting the magistracy across England and Wales.  
 
Paul Miller �± Non-Executive Director (Independent)  
 
Paul Miller joined the Trust in March 2018 for a three-
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The Work of the Audit Committee in Discharging its Responsibilities  
 
The Audit Committee is in place to provide the Board with assurance as to the effectiveness 
of the processes overseen by the Board itself and by the Finance & Performance, People 
and Culture, and Clinical Governance Committees.  
 
The committee is supported by the Appointed Auditor, Grant Thornton LLP who took office 
from November 2018. In October 2019 the Council of Governors approved the appointment 
�R�I���*�U�D�Q�W���7�K�R�U�Q�W�R�Q���D�V���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���(�[�W�H�U�Q�D�O���$�X�G�L�W�R�U���I�R�U���W�K�H���Q�H�[�W���I�R�X�U���\�H�D�U�V�� 
 
During 2021-22, the internal audit service was provided by PwC UK.   
 
The Committee has an annual work programme as well as dealing with other items that arise 
during the year. It also agrees annual work programmes with the auditors and the Executive.  
 
The Audit Committee is chaired by Paul Kemp, Non-Executive Director. The Audit 
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issues with the accounts and did not impact the outcome. The Audit Committee signed off 
the Annual Accounts on the 18th 





Annual Report & Accounts 20 21 to 2022                                     

 

 
 

64 
 

The Committee membership includes the Trust Chairman, as Chair and all Non-Executive 
Directors.
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Nominations 

Committee(s) 

B.2.10 A separate se
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Council of 

Governors 

n/a If, during the financial year, the Governors 
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Board/ 
Remuneration 

Committee 

D.1.3 Where an NHS foundation trust releases an 
executive director, for example to serve as a 
non-executive director elsewhere, 
the remuneration disclosures of the annual 
report should include a statement of whether 
or not the director 
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Board/Council 
of 

Governors 

n/a T
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answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are set out in the 
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  
 
Scope of Responsibility  
 
As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal control 
�W�K�D�W���V�X�S�S�R�U�W�V���W�K�H���D�F�K�L�H�Y�H�P�H�Q�W���R�I���W�K�H���1�+�6���I�R�X�Q�G�D�W�L�R�Q���W�U�X�V�W�¶�V���S�R�O�L�F�L�H�V�����D�L�P�V���D�Q�G���R�E�M�H�F�W�L�Y�H�V����
whilst safeguarding the public funds and departmental assets for which I am personally 
responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for 
ensuring that the NHS foundation trust is administered prudently and economically and that 
resources are applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as 
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum. 
 
The Purpose of the System of Internal Control  
 
The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 
achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, 
and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control 
has been in place in Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 
up to the date of approval of the annual report and accounts. 
 
Capacity to Handle Risk  
 
As the Chief Executive, I have overall responsibility for risk management within the Trust. 
The day-to-day oversight has been delegated to an executive lead for risk (the Chief Nursing 
Officer), who is responsible for reporting to the Trust Board on the development and 
progress of risk management and for ensuring that the Risk Management Strategy is 
implemented and evaluated effectively.  
 
�7�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���6�H�Q�L�R�U���/�H�D�G�H�U�V�K�L�S���7�H�D�P���&�R�P�P�L�W�W�H�H�����Z�K�L�F�K���,���F�K�D�L�U�����K�D�V���W�K�H���U�H�P�L�W���W�R���H�Q�V�X�U�H��
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Risk control measures are identified and implemented to reduce the potential for harm. The 
potential consequence and likelihood of the risk occurring are scored along with the 
effectiveness of existing control measures. It is the sum of these scores which determines 
the level in the organisation at 
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�x Staffing availability impacting on service delivery and health and well-being of staff. 

�x Impact of delayed discharge from hospital including management of an increasing 
number of No Criteria to Reside patients 

�x Information technology, clinical systems and technical infrastructure. 

�x Critical plant and building infrastructure within limited capital funding.  
 

 
The Trust established controls or implemented actions to manage these risks as 
summarised below: 

�x Incident management structure in response to the National Level 4 incident 

�x System response to address operational and capacity pressures. 

�x Implementation of National Infection, Prevention and Control measures including 
vaccination programme. 

�x Incentive schemes to minimise staffing shortfalls. 

�x Creative use of volunteers to support ward staff e.g., ward buddies 

�x Occupational Health and wellbeing support for staff including clinical psychology 
support 

�x Implementation of the digital strategy and continued focus development of the 
infrastructure and controls. 

�x Robust capital prioritisation processes to ensure resources are deployed effectively.  
 

Major risks 2022/23 
 
As we enter 2022/2023, the Trust is focused on enacting recovery plans following de-
escalation from the National Level 4 incident. The focus will be on the delivery of NHS 
England Operational Planning Priorities 2022/23: 

�x Supporting the health and wellbeing of staff  

�x Accelerate the restoration of elective and cancer care and reduce waiting times 

�x Working with partners to transform community and urgent and emergency care to 
prevent inappropriate attendance at emergency departments (ED), improve timely 
admission to hospital for ED patients and reduce length of stay  

�x Working collaboratively across systems to deliver on these priorities. 

�x Ability to achieve financial sustainability 
 
Key risks include: 

�x Pace of recovery 

�x Impact of COVID-19 on the health and wellbeing of staff 

�x Balancing business as usual with recovery plans 

�x Financial constraints 
 
Within this context, we acknowledge the great opportunity in our closer integration with local 
partners and will continue to prioritise this and the benefits it provides in the delivery of our 
wider strategic objectives. We will review these to ensure the Trust is best placed to deliver 
the NHS and Bath, Swindon and Wiltshire Integrated Care System (BSW ICS) Long Term 
Plans and we will embrace the priorities of the NHS People Plan with the vision to make the 
�7�U�X�V�W���µ�W�K�H���%�H�V�W���3�O�D�F�H���W�R���:�R�U�N���¶ 
 
Our underlying financial position remains a significant challenge. The financial regime for 
2021-22 was very different due to the funding arrangements in response to COVID-19, 
which meant the Trust reported a breakeven position. However, 2022-23 signals a move 
back to a funding settlement in line with the long-term plan, which would return the Trust to a 
deficit. As a healthcare system, financial sustainability is also a priority; BSW ICS is 
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developing plans to address the system deficit where Salisbury will play a significant role. 
The changes in pathways and services in response to COVID-19 present both a challenge 
and opportunity to deliver and redesign services ultimately at a lower cost. 
  
The future sustainability of the Trust will also be dependent on our ability to progress the 
delivery of our Estates masterplan. The operational resilience of areas such as Day Surgery 
and the Maternity Unit remain regular concerns, alongside managing the risk of high capital 
expenditure on reactive maintenance in the ageing parts of our Estate.  
 
Quality Governance
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With the simple goal of delivering an outstanding experience for patients, their families 
and the people who work with us - and being in a position where everyone can proudly 
say that Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust is the best place to work 
The Trust has a robust approach to the assessment of the potential impact of cost reduction 
programmes on the quality of services. The quality impact assessment process involves a 
structured risk assessment using a standard template which requires Divisional 
Management Team sign off.  The Chief Medical Officer and Chief Nursing Officer are 
responsible for assuring themselves and the Board that Cost Improvement Programmes will 
not have an adverse impact on quality.  
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Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust has taken the following actions to improve the quality of its 
services and reduce the rate of patient safety incidents that have resulted in severe harm or 
death by: 
 

�x �'�H�W�H�U�P�L�Q�L�Q�J���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���T�X�D�O�L�W�\��priorities and monitoring delivery against key 
objectives. This is reported quarterly to Trust Board and Board Committees together 
with the Board Assurance Framework. 

�x Monitoring ward to board reporting on key patient safety and experience indicators 
and re
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The Maternity Voices Partnership (MVP) is a forum for maternity service users, providers 
and commissioners of maternity services to come together to design services that meet the 
needs of local women, parents and families. Working together to share ideas and identify 
solutions for the design and improvement of maternity care. The function of the MVP is more 
than simply to listen; it is a way of discussing and overcoming challenges. The group aims to 
support the development and improvement of maternity care for everyone, regardless of who 
they are or where they live, so that everyone has access to the same quality of care. 
The Trust has assessed compliance with the NHS provider condition 4. The Trust believes 
that effective systems and processes are in place to maintain and monitor the following 
conditions: 

�x The effectiveness of governance structures 

�x The responsibilities of Directors and subcommittees 

�x Reporting lines and accountabilities between the Board, its subcommittees and the 
executive team 

�x The submission of timely and accurate information to assess risks to compliance with 
�W�K�H���W�U�X�V�W�¶�V���O�L�F�H�Q�F�H��and 

�x �7�K�H���G�H�J�U�H�H���D�Q�G���U�L�J�R�X�U���R�I���R�Y�H�U�V�L�J�K�W���W�K�H���%�R�D�U�G���K�D�V���R�Y�H�U���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���S�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H�� 
 
These conditions are detailed within the Corporate Governance Statement, the validity of 
which is assured via the Finance and Performance Committee. Finance and Performance 
Committee reviewed the assessment in detail at its meeting on26 April 2022 and confirmed 
that no material risks had been identified. 
 
The Trust implements key approaches and mechanisms to ensure that the short, medium 
and long-term workforce strategies and staffing systems are in place to assure the Board 
that staffing processes are safe, sustainable and effective. These include the following: 
 

�x Operating a resourcing programme with a strong focus on hard to recruit posts, 
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On 31 March 2021, the Trust had an unannounced inspection of the Spinal and Maternity 
Services, with the report published in May 2021. The overall rating for the Spinal Services was 
�X�Q�F�K�D�Q�J�H�G���I�U�R�P���µ�5�H�T�X�L�U�H�V���,�P�S�U�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W�¶�����7�K�H���0�D�W�H�U�Q�L�W�\���6�H�U�Y�L�F�H�V���U�D�W�L�Q�J���F�K�D�Q�J�H�G���I�U�R�P���µ�*�R�R�G�¶��
�W�R���µ�5�H�T�X�L�U�H�V���,�P�S�U�R�Y�H�P�H�Q�W�¶���D�Q�G���D���6�H�F�W�L�R�Q�������$���1�R�W�L�F�H���Z�D�V���V�H�U�Y�H�G�����I�R�F�X�V�H�G���R�Q�� 

�x leadership and culture 

�x governance and risk management 

The Trust worked with the CQC during 2021 to provide evidence of its compliance against the 
notice. The CQC carried out a short notice, announced inspection in October 2021, focused 
on the parts of the service that did not meet legal requirel
(eg)3(al>7st)-3( )-47(20)3(21)vThee partl
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programme. The trust ensures that its obligations under the Climate Change Act and the 
Adaptation Reporting requirements are complied with. 
 
Review of Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness of the use of Resources  
 
The Trust regularly reviews the economy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the use of 
resources through benchmarking, reference costs, regular meetings between directorates 
and the Executive Directors, and assessing performance against plans. Investments are 
determined against detailed business plans and outcomes are reviewed against those plans.  
 
The Audit Committee gives specific consideration to matters of probity, the propriety, 
regularity of public finances and value for money, which arise from the work of the external 
�D�X�G�L�W�R�U�V���D�Q�G���W�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���³�O�R�F�D�O���F�R�X�Q�W�H�U���I�U�D�X�G���V�S�H�F�L�D�O�L�V�W�´���D�Q�G���L�Q�W�H�U�Q�D�O���D�X�G�L�W���V�H�U�Y�L�F�H�� 
 
The Trust continues to actively pursue the opportunities as identified through the model 
hospital, GIRFT and the right care data, increasingly the Trust is working with system 
partners to identify how working collaboratively can reduce the cost base. This is reviewed at 
the Acute Alliance and BSW Directors of Finance meetings.  
 
Arrangements to operate efficiently, economically and effectively are formally reviewed by 
external audit.  Departmental cost improvement programmes and their delivery is tracked 
through the Directorate Performance Reviews and through the Trust Transformation 
programme. This will continue to be taken forward as a key part of financial governance and 
controls. 
 
�7�K�H���7�U�X�V�W�¶�V���I�L�Q�D�Q�F�H�V���D�U�H���U�H�Y�L�H�Z�H�G���E�\���W�K�H���)�L�Q�D�Q�F�H���D�Q�G���3�H�U�I�R�U�P�D�Q�F�H���&�R�P�P�L�W�W�H�H���D�W���L�W�V��
monthly meetings. Monthly performance, workforce and quality information is scrutinised 
each month by the Board through the Integrated Performance Report.  
   
Information Governance  
 
The Trust acknowledges the importance patients and staff place on the security, 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of corporate and personal information. The Trust is 
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can be trusted to maintain the confidentiality and security of personal information, in an open 
and transparent manner thereby increasing public confidence. 
 
In line with the NHS Digital guidance, the Trust confirms it will submit the 2021/2022 Data 
Security and Protection Toolkit assessment on or before the 30th June 2022. 
 
Data Quality and Governance  
 
There is corporate leadership for data quality with the Chief Digital Officer (SIRO) holding 
responsibility for the quality of performance data which is reported monthly at the Trust 
Board and assurance committees. 
 
The Trust has an up-to-date Data Quality Policy that is reviewed annually and was last 
refreshed during 2021-22. The policy outlines a strengthened approach to data quality, 
focussing on the following key areas: 
 

�x Raising awareness of the importance of high-quality data. 

�x Assisting all staff in understanding their role and responsibility in maintaining high 
quality data. 

�x Assisting staff in getting data quality 'Right First Time' through supporting staff in 
putting in working practices and processes which enable high data quality at the first 
time of input. 

�x Minimising risks arising from poor data quality. 

�x Monitoring the quality of data used by the Trust and where needed, to highlight 
where data is inaccurate and needs to be checked and improved. 

�x Establishing a framework within which data quality issues can be raised and 
actioned. 
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maintenance of the internal control framework. I have drawn on performance information 
available to me. My review is also informed by c
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A report is produced at the conclusion of each audit assignment and, where scope for 
improvement is found, recommendations are made and appropriate action plans agreed with 
management. Reports are issued to and followed up with the responsible Executive 
Directors, with the results of audit work reported to the Audit Committee. In addition to the 
planned programme of work, internal audit provides advice and assistance to senior 
management on control issues and other matters of concern. Where Internal Audit issued a 
limited assurance report, the relevant audit executive lead attended the Audit Committee to 
discuss the report and actions taken. A process was implemented that any extension to 
action deadlines requires collective executive approval and is presented by the executive 
Sponsor for the audit. 
 
The Trust is focused on action plans to address the identified risks reported in 2021-22 
which have been approved by the Trust Audit Committee. The Trust implemented an 
electronic solution to track all audit recommendations and actions to enhance monitoring and 
oversight. The success of this is demonstrated by the closure of 58 of the 61 actions 
generated from the previous year findings. 
 
Conclusion  
 
The Trust Board is committed to the continuous improvement of its governance 
arrangements to ensure that systems are in place to identify and manage risks correctly. Any 
serious incidents or incidents of non-compliance with standards and regulatory requirements 
are escalated and are subject to prompt and effective remedial action. This is to ensure that 
patients, service users and staff and stakeholders can be confident in the quality of the 
services delivered and the effective, economic and efficient use of resources. 
 
Overall, there is in place a dynamic process for the management of internal control which is 
reviewed and updated regularly by the Executive Team and various Board Committees that 
are in place in the Trust to help me meet my responsibilities as Accounting Officer. The risks 
the Trust has faced, together with the actions taken to address each of these areas are 
detailed within this annual governance statement. My review confirms that Salisbury NHS 
Foundation Trust has sound systems of internal control up to the date of approval of the 
annual report and accounts and no significant internal control issues have been identified. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Stacey Hunter  
Chief Executive (Accounting Officer)  
16/06/2022 (on behalf of the Trust Board)  
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Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statemen ts For The Year To 31 March 2022

FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 March 2022 have been prepared by Salisbury NHS
Foundation Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 and 25 of Schedule 7 to the National Health Service Act
2006.

Signed: 

Date:  16 June 2022

Stacey Hunter - Chief Executive

(i)



Independent auditor's report to the Council of Governors of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified o pinion on financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust (the ‘Trust’) and its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures (the ‘group’) for the year ended 31 March 2022, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Taxpayers Equity, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements
of the Accounts Directions issued under Schedule 7 of the National Health Service Act 2006, as interpreted and adapted by the
Department of Health and Social Care Group accounting manual 2021 to 2022.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects on the corresponding figures of the matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion 
section of our report, the financial statements:

 •give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and of the Trust as at 31 March 2022 and of the group’s 
expenditure and income and the Trust’s expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

 •have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the 
Department of Health and Social Care Group accounting manual 2021 to 2022; and 

 •have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006.

Basis for qualified o pinion

Due to the national lockdown arising from the Covid-19 pandemic in March 2020, we were not able to observe the counting of the
physical inventories at 31 March 2020 or satisfy ourselves by alternative means concerning the inventory quantities held at that





Salisbur y NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

Responsibilities of the Accountin g Officer and Those Char ged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as the accounting officer, the Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the
Accounts Directions included in the NHS foundation trust annual reporting manual 2021/22, for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accounting Officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Accounting Officer is responsible for assessing the group’s and the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Accounting Officer has been informed by the relevant national body of the intention to dissolve the Trust and 
the group without the transfer of the services to another public sector entity.

The Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the
group and Trust’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibiliti es for the audit of th e financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Owing to the inherent
limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that material misstatements in the financial statements may not be detected,
even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the ISAs (UK). 

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below: 

 •We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the group and Trust and 
determined that the most significant which are directly relevant to specific assertions in the financial statements are those related 
to the reporting frameworks (international accounting standards and the National Health Service Act 2006, as interpreted and 
adapted by the Department of Health and Social Care Group accounting manual 2021 to 2022).

 •We enquired of management and the Audit Committee, concerning the group and Trust’s policies and procedures relating to: 

 �the identification, evaluation and co mpliance with laws and regulations;

 �the detection and response to the risks of fraud; and

 �the establishment of internal controls to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

 •We enquired of management, internal audit and the Audit Committee, whether they were aware of any instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations or whether they 
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 •Our audit procedures involved: 

 �evaluation of the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect fraud;

 �sample testing of revenue transactions where income was not received under block contract arrangements;

 �due to the implementation of a new financial ledger, we under took testing on journal entries made in both the old and 
new systems. Our journal entry testing, was focussed on high risk and unusual  journals including those posted by staff 
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Responsibilities of the Accounting Officer

The Chief Executive, as Accounting Officer, is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the Trust's resources.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of th e Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources

We are required under paragraph 1 of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service Act 2006 to be satisfied that the Trust has
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Trust's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance issued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in December 2021. This guidance sets out the arrangements that fall within the scope of ‘proper
arrangements’. When reporting on these arrangements, the Code of Audit Practice requires auditors to structure their commentary
on arrangements under three specified reporting criteria:

 •Financial sustainability: how the Trust plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services; 

 •Governance: how the Trust ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and 

 •Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness: how the Trust uses information about its costs and performance to improve 
the way it manages and delivers its services.

We have documented our understanding of the arrangements the Trust has in place for each of these three specified reporting
criteria, gathering sufficient evidence to support our risk assessment and commentary in our Auditor’s Annual Report. In
undertaking our work, we have considered whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in 

Report on other le gal and re gulator y requirements – Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust in accordance with the
requirements of Chapter 5 of Part 2 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 10 of the National



2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21

Note £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue from patient care activities 3 278,480 243,623 278,480 243,623

Other operating revenue 5 39,252 51,672 26,887 40,274

Operating expenses 7 (311,781) (289,341) (299,976) (277,623)

OPERATING SURPLUS 5,951 5,954 5,391 6,274

FINANCE COSTS

Finance income 12 309 287 233 170

Finance expense 13 (2,002) (2,122) (2,002) (2,122)

PDC Dividends payable (4,073) (3,322) (4,073) (3,322)

NET FINANCE COSTS (5,766) (5,157) (5,842) (5,274)

Losses on disposal of assets 17 (249) (156) (249) (156)

Share of profit of associates/ joint ventures 33 65 93 65 93
Movement in fair value of other investments 18 438 1,417 -  -  

RETAINED SURPLUS/ (DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 439 2,151 (635) 937

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Items that will not be reclassified to income and expenditure

Revaluations 10,261 4,601 10,042 4,549

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 10,700 6,752 9,407 5,486

NOTE: ALLOCATION OF PROFIT/(LOSSES) FOR THE YEAR

(a) Surplus/(Deficit) for the period attributable to:

(i) Minority interest, and 27 3 -  -  

(ii) Owners of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 412 2,148 (635) 937
TOTAL 439 2,151 (635) 937

(b) Total comprehensive income/ (expense) for the year attributable 
to:
(i) Minority interest, and 27 3 -  -  

(ii) Owners of Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 10,673 6,749 9,407 5,486
TOTAL 10,700 6,752 9,407 5,486

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For The Year Ended 31 March 2022

Group Trust

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.
All revenue and expenditure is derived from continuing operations.
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31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021

Note £000 £000 £000 £000
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 16 9,896 10,952 9,896 10,952
Property, plant and equipment 17 162,419 149,210 158,532 146,956
Investments in subsidiaries 32 -  -  -  5
Investments in joint ventures 33 246 181 246 181
Investments 18 8,225 7,893 -  -  
Other financial assets 19 2,497 2,395 4,006 4,551
Receivables 21 656 762 656 762
Total non-current assets 183,939 171,393 173,336 163,407

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 20 7,939 7,634 6,311 6,050
Receivables 21 14,211 12,077 13,103 11,783
Investments 18 337 113 -  -  
Other financial assets 19 -  -  1,940 1,027
Cash and cash equivalents 22 39,306 31,169 30,819 22,309
Total current assets 61,793 50,993 52,173 41,169

Total assets 245,732 222,386 225,509 204,576

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 23 (46,071) (36,727) (44,755) (35,364)
Borrowings 24 (1,714) (1,608) (1,546) (1,608)
Provisions 25 (1,234) (971) (1,234) (971)

TOTAL CURRENT LI ABILITIES (49,019) (39,306) (47,535) (37,943)

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 196,713 183,080 177,974 166,633

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Borrowings 24 (18,145) (18,680) (17,146) (18,680)
Provisions 25 (895) (1,256) (895) (1,256)

TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (19,040) (19,936) (18,041) (19,936)

TOTAL ASSETS EMPLOYED 177,673 163,144 159,933 146,697

FINANCED BY:

TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

Minority Interest 80 53 -  -  
Public dividend capital 34 94,826 90,997 94,826 90,997
Revaluation reserve 75,780 65,738 75,780 65,738
Income and expenditure reserve (9,239) (8,896) (10,673) (10,038)
Charitable fund reserves 35 16,226 15,252 -  -  

TOTAL TAXPAYERS EQUITY 177,673 163,144 159,933 146,697

-  
The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Public Income and Revaluation Trust Charitable Total
dividend expenditure reserv e Reserve s Profit & Loss Minority Funds taxpayers'

capital reserv e Reserve s interes t reserv e equity
(PDC)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Taxpayers' and Others' Equity at 1 April 202 0 58,650 (10,979) 61,193 108,864 1,200 50 13,931 124,045

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2020/21
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year -  937 -  937 (58) 3 1,269 2,151
Other recognised gains and losses -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Impairment of property plant and equipment -  4 (4) -  -  -  -  -  

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property plant and equipment -  -  4,549 4,549 -  -  -  4,549
Transfers between reserves -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Revaluations and impairments - charitable fund assets -  -  -  -  -  -  52 52
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial 
investments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other reserve movements -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Public dividend capital received in year 32,419 -  -  32,419 -  -  -  32,419
Public dividend capital repaid in year (72) -  -  (72) -  -  -  (72)

Balance at 31 March 2021 90,997 (10,038) 65,738 146,69 7 1,142 53 15,252 163,144

Changes in taxpayers' equity for 2021/2 2
Retained surplus/(deficit) for the year -  (635) -  (635) 292 27 755 439
Other recognised gains and losses -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Impairment of property plant and equipment -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property plant and equipment -  -  10,042 10,042 -  -  -  10,042
Transfers between reserves -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Revaluations and impairments - charitable fund assets -  -  -  -  -  -  219 219
Fair Value gains/(losses) on Available-for-sale financial 
investments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other reserve movements -  -  -  -  -  -  
Public dividend capital received in year 4,112 -  -  4,112 -  -  -  4,112
Public dividend capital repaid in year (283) -  -  (283) -  -  -  (283)

Balance at 31 March 202 2 94,826 (10,673) 75,780 159,933 1,434 80 16,226 177,673

The notes on pages 5 to 52 form an integral part of these financial statements

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 202 2
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2022 2021 2022 2021
Note £000 £000 £000 £000



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial
statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting requirements of the Department of Health and Social Care Group
Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the GAM 2021/22 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.4 Basis of Consolidation

1.4.1 NHS Charitable Fund
The Trust is the Corporate Trustee to Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund. The Trust has assessed its
relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the Trust is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns and other benefits for itself, patients and staff from its involvement with the charitable fund and has
the ability to affect those returns and other benefits through its power over the fund.

The consolidation is for reporting purposes only and does not affect the charity's legal and regulatory independence
and day to day operations.

The charitable fund’s statutory accounts are prepared to 31 March in accordance with the UK Charities Statement of
Recommended Practice (SORP) which is based on UK Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 102. On consolidation,
necessary adjustments are made to the charity’s assets, liabilities and transactions to:

�x         recognise and measure them in accordance with the Trust's accounting policies; and
�x         eliminate intra-group transactions, balances, gains and losses.

1.4.2 Subsidiaries
Subsidiary entities are those over which the Trust is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. The income, expenses,
assets, liabilities, equity and reserves of subsidiaries are consolidated in full into the appropriate financial statement
lines. The capital and reserves attributable to minority interests are included as a separate item in the Statement of
Financial Position. 

The amounts consolidated are drawn from the published financial statements of the subsidiaries for the previous year
together with draft figures for the current year.

Where subsidiaries’ accounting policies are not aligned with those of the Trust (including where they report under UK
FRS 102) then amounts are adjusted during consolidation where the differences are material. Inter-entity balances,
transactions and gains/losses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Unless otherwise stated the notes to the accounts refer to the Group and not the Trust. Where the Trust's balances
are materially different, these are stated separately.

1.4.3 Associate s
Associate entities are those over which the Trust has the power to exercise a significant influence. Associate entities
are recognised in the Trust’s financial statement using the equity method. The investment is initially recognised at cost.
It is increased or decreased subsequently to reflect the Trust’s share of the entity’s profit or loss or other gains and
losses (e.g. revaluation gains on the entity’s property, plant and equipment) following acquisition. It is also reduced
when any distribution, e.g., share dividends are received by the Trust from the associate.

1.4.4 Joint ventures
Joint ventures are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more other parties, and where it has
the rights to the net assets of the arrangement. 

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

1.4.5 Joint o perations
Joint operations are arrangements in which the Trust has joint control with one or more other parties and has the rights
to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Trust includes within its financial statements its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5 Income Reco gnition 

1.5.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. The GAM expands the
definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which enables an entity to receive cash or another
financial asset that is not classified as a tax by the Office of National Statistics (ONS). 





1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Expenditure on employee benefits

1.6.1 Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are
recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement earned
but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that
employees are permitted to carry-forward leave into the following period.

1.6.2 Pension costs

NHS Pension Schem e
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed under the
direction of Secretary of State for Health and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way
that would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
scheme is accounted for as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the Trust is taken as equal to the
employer's pension contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period. The contributions are charged to
operating expenses as and when they become due.

Additional pension liabilities arising from early retirements are not funded by the scheme except where the retirement
is due to ill-health. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the operating expenses at the
time the trust commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

National Em ployment Savin gs Trust (NEST)
Employees that are not entitled to enrol on the NHS Pension Scheme are auto-enrolled into the Government NEST
defined contribution workplace pension scheme.

Under the terms of the NEST scheme employees retain the right to opt-out after having been auto-enrolled.

Employer's pension cost contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due. 

Subsidiar y pension scheme
The subsidiary companies operate defined contribution schemes for employees who have contracts of employment
directly with the companies. Employer's pension costs are charged to operating expenses as and when they become
due.

These  schemes comply with legislative requirements.

1.7 Expenditure on goods and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, and to the extent that they have been received, and is
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except
where it results in the creation of a non-current asset such as property, plant and equipment. 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8 Intangible assets

1.8.1 Recognition
Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance which are capable of being sold separately from
the rest of the Trust’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust and where the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably, and where the cost is at least £5,000. 

Internall y generated intan gible assets
Internally generated goodwill, brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and similar items are not capitalised
as intangible assets.

Expenditure on research is not capitalised. Expenditure on development is capitalised when it meets the requirements
set out in IAS 38.

Softwar



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9 Property, p





1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

1.9.3 De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met. The sale must
be highly probable and the asset available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at the lower of their existing carrying amount and their fair value
less costs to sell. Depreciation ceases to be charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale contract
conditions have been met.

The profit or loss arising on disposal of an asset is the difference between the sale proceeds, less costs associated
with the sale, and the carrying amount and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On disposal,
the balance for the asset on the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings. 



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.9

PFI liabilit y



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.11 Borrowin g costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses as they are incurred.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured on the First
In, First Out (FIFO) method. Work-in-progress comprises goods in intermediate stages of production. The Laundry
stock value is based on the original cost less an adjustment to reflect usage, over a three year life (except for Towels
and Scrub Suits which have a two year life), in determining an approximation of net realisable value.

In 2020/21 and 2021/22, the Trust received inventories including personal protective equipment from the Department
of Health and Social Care at nil cost. In line with the GAM and applying the principles of the IFRS Conceptual
Framework, the Trust has accounted for the receipt of these inventories at a deemed cost, reflecting the best available
approximation of an imputed market value for the transaction based on the cost of acquisition by the Department. 

1.13 Cash and cash e quivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.  

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are recorded at
current values.

1.14 Financial assets and financial liabilities

1.14.1 Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial instrument.
The GAM expands the definition of a contract to include legislation and regulations which give rise to arrangements
that in all other respects would be a financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions classified as a tax by
ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items (such as goods or services), which are entered into in
accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or usage requirements and are recognised when, and to the extent
which, performance occurs, i.e. when receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

1.14.2 Classification and measuremen t



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.14.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised cost are those held with the objective of collecting contractual
cash flows and where cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes cash equivalents, contract
and other receivables, trade and other payables, rights and obligations under lease arrangements and loans receivable
and payable.

After initial recognition, these financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment (for financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
a financing income or expense. In the case of loans held from the Department of Health and Social Care, the effective
interest rate is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income and expenditure
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss are those that are not otherwise measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income. This category also includes financial assets and liabilities
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term (held for trading) and derivatives. Derivatives which are
embedded in other contracts, but which are separable from the host contract are measured within this category.



1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

1.15.1 The Trust as lessee 

Finance lease s
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset is
recorded as property, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are
recognised is the lower of the fair value of the asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which produces a constant
periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability.

The asset and liability are recognised at the commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset is accounted for
as an item of property, plant and equipment. 

The annual rental charge is split between the repayment of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a
constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to finance costs in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Operatin g leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incentives are recognised initially in other liabilities on the statement of financial position and subsequently as a
reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classification for each is assessed separately. 

1.15.2 The Trust as lesso r

Finance lease s
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Trust’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operatin g leases
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

1.16 Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or
amount; for which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best
estimate of the resources required to settle the obligation. 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 202 2
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Provisions (Continued )

Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted
using HM Treasury’s discount rates effective for 31 March 2022:

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows
are therefore adjusted for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation
rates are set by HM Treasury, effective 31 March 2022:

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions both use the HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of
minus 1.3% in real terms (prior year: minus 0.95%)

Clinical ne gligence costs
NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS
Resolution, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 25 but is not
recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk poolin g
The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk
pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any “excesses” payable in
respect of particular claims are charged to operating expenses when the liability arises. 

1.17 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more
future events not wholly within the entity’s control) are not recognised as assets, but are disclosed where an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

A Contingent liability is disclosed unless the probability of a transfer of economic benefits is remote. 

Contingent liabilities are defined as:
• possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the entity’s control; or
• present obligations arising from past events but for which it is not probable that a transfer of economic 
benefits will arise or for which the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

1.18 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over
liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that
PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of IAS 32. 

At any time, the Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC
is recorded at the value received.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.18 Public dividend capital (continued)

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury (currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of the Trust during the
financial year. Relevant net assets are calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all liabilities, with certain
additions and deductions as defined in the PDC dividend policy issued by the Department of Health and Social Care.
This policy is available at:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/guidance-on-financing-available-to-nhs-trusts-and-foundation-trusts.

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net assets occur as a result the audit
of the annual accounts.

1.19 Value Added Ta x

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax
on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are
stated net of VAT.

1.20 Corporation Tax

The Trust does not have a corporation tax liability for the year 2021/22 (2020/21 £nil). Tax may be payable by the Trust
on activities described below:

- The activity is not related to the provision of core healthcare as defined under Section 14(1) of the HSCA.  
Private Healthcare falls under this legislation and is not therefore taxable.
- The activity is commercial in nature and competes with the private sector.  In house trading activities are 
normally ancillary to the core healthcare objectives and are therefore not subject to tax.
- Annual profits from the activity must exceed £50,000

The Trust's subsidiary companies have made a modest profit leading to a corporation tax liability of £37k (2020/21:
£30k).

1.21 Climate chan ge levy

Expenditure on the climate change levy is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred, based
on the prevailing chargeable rates for energy consumption.

1.22 Forei gn exchan ge 

The functional and presentational currency of the Trust is sterling. A transaction which is denominated in a foreign
currency is translated into the functional currency at the spot exchange rate on the date of the transaction. 

Where the Trust has assets or liabilities denominated in a foreign currency at the Statement of Financial Position date:

• monetary items are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at historical cost are translated using the spot exchange rate at 
the date of the transaction and
• non-monetary assets and liabilities measured at fair value are translated using the spot exchange rate at the 
date the fair value was determined.

Exchange gains or losses on monetary items (arising on settlement of the transaction or on re-translation at the
Statement of Financial Position date) are recognised in income or expense in the period in which they arise.

Exchange gains or losses on non-monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the same manner as other gains and
losses on these items.

1.23 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties (such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since
the Trust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separate note (note 31) to the accounts in
accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM. 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.24 Losses and S pecial Pa yments

1.25 Gifts

1.26

1.27

IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust will apply this definition to
new leases only and will grandfather its assessments made under the old standards of whether existing contracts
contain a lease.

For leases commencing in 2022/23, the Trust will not recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short term
leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for leases of low value assets (less than £5,000). Right of use assets
will be subsequently measured on a basis consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the length of the
lease term. 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.27

Grou p
£'000

Estimated im pact on 1 A pril 2022 statement of financial position
Additional right of use assets recognised for existing operating leases 2,419
Additional lease obligations recognised for existing operating leases (2,265)
Changes to other statement of financial position line items -  
Net im pact on net assets on 1 A pril 2022 154

Estimated in- year im pact in 2022/23
Additional depreciation on right of use assets (1,149)
Additional finance costs on lease liabilities (28)
Lease rentals no longer charged to operating expenditure 1,040
Other impact on income / expenditure -  
Estimated im pact on sur plus / deficit in 2022/23 (137)

Estimated increase in ca pital additions for new leases commencin g in 2022/23 2,818

Trus t
£'000

Estimated im pact on 1 A pril 2022 statement of financial position
Additional right of use assets recognised for existing operating leases 1,026
Additional lease obligations recognised for existing operating leases (847)
Changes to other statement of financial position line items -  
Net im pact on net assets on 1 A pril 2022 179

Estimated in- year im pact in 2022/23
Additional depreciation on right of use assets (700)
Additional finance costs on lease liabilities (28)
Lease rentals no longer charged to operating expenditure 583
Other impact on income / expenditure
Estimated im pact on sur plus / deficit in 2022/23 (145)

Estimated increase in ca pital additions for new leases commencin g in 2022/23 2,818

The trust has estimated the impact of applying IFRS 16 in 2022/23 on the opening statement of financial position
and the in-year impact on the statement of comprehensive income and capital additions as follows:

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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From 1 April 2022, the principles of IFRS 16 will also be applied to the Trust’s PFI liabilities where future payments
are linked to a price index representing the rate of inflation. The PFI liability will be remeasured when a change in
the index causes a change in future repayments and that change has taken effect in the cash flow. Under existing
accounting practices, amounts relating to changes in the price index are expensed as incurred. This is expected to
increase the PFI liability on the statement of financial position upon transition to IFRS 16. The effect of this has not
yet been quantified.

Standards, amendments and inter pretations in issue but not yet effective or ado pted (continued )
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2. Segmental Analysi s

Group and Trust

The business activities of the Group can be summarised as that of 'healthcare'. The Trust's activities comprise five
key operating areas where costs are closely monitored during the year. The chief operating decision maker for
Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust is the Trust Board. Key decisions are agreed at monthly Board meetings and sub-
committee meetings of the Board, following scrutiny of performance and resource allocation. The Trust Board
review and make decisions on activity and performance of the Trust as a whole entity, not for its separate business
activities. The activities of the subsidiary companies, Odstock Medical Limited and Salisbury Trading Limited, and
of the charity, Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund, are not considered sufficiently material to require
separate disclosure.  

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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3 Revenue From Patient Care Activities

3.1 Revenue by Nature

2022 2021
£000 £000

Block contract / system envelope income 233,471 207,419
High cost drugs income from commissioners 20,952 18,645
Other NHS clinical income 2,882 2,602
Total revenue at full tariff 257,305 228,666
Private patient revenue 2,416 1,759
Elective recovery fund 3,440 -  
Additional pension contribution central funding* 7,460 7,073
Other clinical income 7,859 6,125
Total income from patient care activities 278,480 243,623

3.2 Revenue by Source

2022 2021
£000 £000

NHS England 59,779 53,483
Clinical commissioning groups 206,667 181,501
Department of Health and Social Care 7 42
Other NHS providers 3,853 2,787
NHS other 553 152
Local authorities 1,553 1,554
Non NHS:
      - Private patients 2,416 1,759
      - Overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 93 107
      - NHS Injury cost recovery scheme 640 725
      - Other 2,919 1,513

278,480 243,623

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Other types of activity revenue above includes amounts due for specialist services (e.g. spinal, burns,
genetics, cleft lip and palate), direct access, intensive care, community and hospice services. 

NHS Injury Scheme revenue is subject to a provision for doubtful debts of 23.76% (2021: 22.43%) to reflect
expected rates of collection. The doubtful debt provision is included in the allowance for impaired contract
receivables included in note 21.3.

Group and Trust

*The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration
charge) from 1 April 2019. Since 2019/20, NHS providers have continued to pay over contributions at the
former rate with the additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost
and related funding have been recognised in these accounts.

Group and Trust
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3 Revenue From Patient Care Activities (continued)

3.3 Commissioner requested services

2022 2021
£000 £000

Income from services designated as commissioner requested services 259,382 227,289
Income from services not designated as commissioner requested services 19,098 16,334

278,480 243,623

3.4 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2022 2021
£000 £000

Income recognised this year 93 107
Cash payments received in-year 90 113
Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables -  -  
Amounts written off in-year 2 24

4. Private patient revenue

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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Under the terms of its provider licence, the Trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities



5. Other operating revenu e

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Reimbursement and top up funding 3,050 15,644 3,050 15,644
Research and development 916 842 916 842
Education and training 10,142 9,022 10,142 9,022
Non-patient care services to other bodies 3,980 2,383 3,980 2,383
Received from DHSC group bodies for COVID response- donated assets -  869 -  869
Received from NHS charities - donated assets -  -  685 384
Contributions to expenditure - equipment donated from DHSC group 
bodies for COVID response below capitalisation threshold -  2 -  2
Contributions to expenditure - consumables (inventory) donated from 
DHSC group bodies for COVID response 883 3,640 883 3,640
Salisbury Trading Limited 9,593 9,324 -  -  
NHS Charitable Funds: Incoming Resources excluding investment income 1,820 1,228 -  -  
Odstock Medical Limited 2,151 1,686 -  -  
Accommodation 1,259 1,268 1,259 1,268
Administrative services provided to Sterile Supplies Limited 229 311 229 311
S0 TD
78tmk/TT2 1 Tf
6.971 0 65229311



7. Operating Expenses

Operating expenses comprise:

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 3,871 3,469 3,871 3,469
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies 3,097 2,991 3,097 2,991
Staff and executive directors costs 198,535 183,346 191,336 176,803
Non-executive directors 166 168 166 168
Supplies and services – clinical (excluding drugs costs) 25,943 24,612 25,127 24,030
Supplies and services - general 4,861 5,897 3,684 4,392
Drugs costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs) 25,213 22,516 25,213 22,516
Inventories written down 99 64 99 64
Consultancy costs 680 2,016 680 2,016
Establishment 3,065 2,059 3,065 1,505
Premises 16,838 13,707 15,649 12,427
Transport 1,660 1,541 1,056 1,541
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10,714 10,090 10,513 9,815
Amortisation on intangible assets 2,968 2,280 2,968 2,280
Impairments net of (reversals) 474 318 474 318
Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets 15 -  15 -  
Provisions arising /(released) in year (43) 79 (43) 79
Change in provisions discount rate(s) 4 6 4 6
Operating lease expenditure (net) 94 108 136 150
Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit 117 104 117 94
Internal audit costs 111 82 111 82
Clinical negligence 8,190 7,041 8,190 7,041
Legal fees 67 504 67 504
Insurance 292 361 292 361
Research and development 46 40 46 40
Education and training 1,465 906 1,465 906
Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP PFI scheme 1,114 1,110 1,114 1,110
Other 2,125 3,926 1,464 2,915

311,781 289,341 299,976 277,623

The total employer's pension contributions are disclosed in note 9.1.

Other expenses include professional fees associated with the hospital site development £0.3m (2021: £0.9m), a contractual dispute
with a supplier £nil (2021: £0.5m), home testing kits £0.2m (2021: £0.3m) as well as costs attributable to Salisbury Trading Limited
£0.1m (2021: £0.3m) and charitable fund expenses of £0.6m (2021: £0.7m).

There is a limitation on the Auditor's liability of £2.0m (2021: £2.0m). The fees payable to auditors for the statutory audit and



8. Operating leases expenditur e



9. Employee benefits (continued )

9.2 Directors' remuneration

2022 2021



10 Pension costs (continued)

b) Full actuarial (fundin g) valuation
The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes
(taking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by
employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016.
The results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6% of pensionable
pay.

The 2016 funding valuation also tested the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap that was set
following the 2012 valuation. There was initially a pause to the cost control element of the 2016 valuations, due
to the uncertainty around member benefits caused by the discrimination ruling relating to the McCloud case.

HMT published valuation directions dated 7 October 2021 that set out the technical detail of how the costs of
remedy are included in the 2016 valuation process.
The directions are available here:
Amending Directions 2021

Following these directions, the scheme actuary has completed the cost control element of the 2016 valuation
for the NHS Pension Scheme, which concludes no changes to benefits or member contributions are required.
The 2016 valuation reports can be found on the NHS Pensions website at:
https://www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/nhs-pension-scheme-accounts-and-valuation-reports

11. Retirements due to ill-health

Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the scheme who are permanently
incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s
pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

Members can purchase additional service in the NHS Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by
the Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC)
providers.

During the year to 31 March 2022 there was 5 (2021: 1) early retirements from the Trust on the grounds of ill-
health. The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements will be £474k (2021: £56k).
The cost of the 2022 ill-health retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority -Pensions
Division.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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12. Finance income

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest receivable 309 287 102 96
Other loans and receivables -  -  131 74

309 287 233 170

13. Finance costs

Group and Trust

2022 2021
£000 £000

Interest on capital loans from the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 40 49
Revenue support / working capital loans from DHSC -  -  
Interest on obligations under finance leases 20 24
Finance costs on obligations under Private Finance Initiatives 1,098 1,130
Contingent finance costs - PFI 846 809
Total finance expense - financial liabilitie s 2,004 2,012
Other finance costs - unwinding of discounts on provisions (2) 110
Total 2,002 2,122

14. The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 199 8
                                                                                                                 

15. Losses and special payment s

Numbe r Value Number Value
£000 £000

Losses
Cash losses -  -  -  -  
Fruitless payments and constructive losses 1 -  -  -  
Bad debts and claims abandoned 445 308 470 181
Stores losses 5 100 2 2

451 408 472 183

Special payment s
Compensation payments -  -  -  -  
Extra-contractual payments -  -  -  -  
Ex-gratia payments 23 247 20 17
Special severance payments -  -  -  -  
Extra-statutory and extra-regulatory payments -  -  -  -  

23 247 20 17

Total losses and special payment s 474 655 492 200

There were no case payments that exceeded £0.1m.

2022 2021
Group and Trust
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There were no amounts payable arising from claims made by businesses under this legislation (2021: £Nil).

Group Trust
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16. Intangible Assets

16.1 Intangible assets at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

Group and Trust

Software 
Licences Total

£000 £000 £000 

Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2021 2,143 19,077 21,220
Additions - purchased 1,922 -  1,922
Additions - donated -  -  -  
Impairments charged to operating expenses -  -  -  
Reclassifications (759) 759 -  
Disposals -  (1,967) (1,967)
At 31 March 2022 3,306 17,869 21,175

Amortisation 
At 1 April 2021 -  10,268 10,268
Provided during the period -  2,968 2,968
Impairments charged to operating expenses -  -  -  
Disposals



17. Property, plant and equipmen t

Group

17.1 Property, Plant and equipment at the balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation 
At 1 April 2021 1,813 106,610 7,587 6,082 50,207 251 14,432 3,708 190,690
Additions - purchased -  -  -  12,574 1,166 -  -  -  13,740
Additions - donated -  351 -  -  289 -  7 38 685
Impairments -  (456) -  -  (18) -  -  -  (474)
Reclassifications -  5,373 -  (12,649) 5,209 33 1,877 157 -  
Revaluation 588 4,831 351 -  -  -  -  -  5,770
Transfer to assets held for sale -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  (8,323) (174) (2,965) (534) (11,996)
At 31 March 2022 2,401 116,709 7,938 6,007 48,530 110 13,351 3,369 198,415

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 April 2021 -  -  -  -  29,190 202 9,495 2,593 41,480
Provided during the period -  4,362 219 -  4,077 11 1,762 282 10,713
Revaluation -  (4,271) (219) -  -  -  -  -  (4,490)
Impairments -  129 -  -  (129) -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  (8,040) (174) (2,965) (528) (11,707)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022 -  220 -  -  25,098 39 8,292 2,347 35,996

Net book value at 31 March 2021
Owned 1,813 85,874 7,587 6,082 20,005 49 3,869 1,115 126,394
Finance leased -  -  -  -  143 -  1,068 -  1,211
On balance sheet PFI -  20,736 -  -  -  -  -  -  20,736
Donated -  -  -  -  869 -  -  -  869
Total at 31 March 2021 1,813 106,610 7,587 6,082 21,017 49 4,937 1,115 149,210

Net book value at 31 March 2022
Owned 2,401 94,593 7,938 6,007 21,592 71 4,379 1,022 138,003
Finance leased -  -  -  -  1,286 -  680 -  1,966
On-SoFP PFI -  21,896 -  -  -  -  -  -  21,896
Donated -  -  -  -  554 -  -  -  554
Total at 31 March 2022 2,401 116,489 7,938 6,007 23,432 71 5,059 1,022 162,419

On 31 March 2022 Gerald Eve LLP revalued the Trust’s land, buildings and dwellings on a Modern Equivalent Asset basis in accordance with the guidance included in the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors 
Valuation Standards. As a result, these assets were revalued to bring them to their current value at that date. 
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued )

Group

17.2 Property, plant and equipment at the previous balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 1,715 103,528 7,793 3,441 70,514 361 12,995 3,882 204,229
Additions - purchased -  -  -  13,879 40 -  -  -  13,919
Additions - donated -  -  -  -  1,193 -  15 15 1,223
Impairments -  (244) -  (69) -  -  -  -  (313)
Reclassifications -  2,658 2 (11,169) 6,881 25 1,565 38 -  
Revaluation 98 668 (208) -  -  -  -  -  558
Disposals -  -  -  -  (28,421) (135) (143) (227) (28,926)
At 31 March 2021 1,813 106,610 7,587 6,082 50,207 251 14,432 3,708 190,690

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2020 -  -  -  -  53,305 332 8,033 2,476 64,146
Provided during the period -  3,823 220 -  4,104 5 1,605 333 10,090
Revaluation -  (3,823) (220) -  -  -  -  -  (4,043)
Impairments -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Disposals -  -  -  -  (28,219) (135) (143) (216) (28,713)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 -  -  -  -  29,190 202 9,495 2,593 41,480





17. Property, plant and equipment (continued )

Trust

17.4 Property, plant and equipment at the previous balance sheet date comprise the following elements:

 Freehold 
land

Freehold 
buildings 
excluding 
dwellings

Freehold 
dwellings 

Assets under 
construction 

and payments 
on account

Plant & 
machinery 

Transport 
equipment 

Information 
technology 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 940 103,528 6,853 3,441 67,079 339 12,995 3,882 199,057
Additions - purchased -  -  -  13,879 -  -  -  -  13,879
Additions - donated -  -  -  -  1,193 -  15 15 1,223
Impairments -  (244) -  (69) -  -  -  -  (313)
Reclassifications -  2,658 2 (11,169) 6,881 25 1,565 38 -  
Revaluation 70 668 (208) -  -  -  -  -  530
Disposals -  -  -  -  (28,411) (113) (143) (227) (28,894)
At 31 March 2021 1,010 106,610 6,647 6,082 46,742 251 14,432 3,708 185,482

Accumu



17. Property, plant and equipment (continued )

17.5

Group

Plant & 
Machinery

Information 
technology 

On-SoFP 
PFI Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021 228 1,943 20,736 22,907
Additions - Purchased 1,166 -  440 1,606
Revaluations -  -  720 720
Disposals -  -  -  -  
At 31 March 202 2 1,394 1,943 21,896 25,233

Accumulated depreciatio n
At 1 April 2021 86 875 -  961
Provided during the period 23 388 594 1,005
Revaluation -  -  (594) (594)
Disposals -  -  -  -  
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 202 2 109 1,263 -  1,372

Net book value at 31 March 202 2
- Purchased 1,285 680 21,896 23,861
Total at 31 March 202 2 1,285 680 21,896  23,861

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 844 1,943 20,622 23,409
Additions - purchased -  -  449 449
Revaluation -  -  (396) (396)
Disposals (616) -  -  (616)
At 31 March 2021 228 1,943 20,675 22,846

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 April 2020 679 486 -  1,165
Provided during the period 23 389 573 985
Revaluation -  -  (573) (573)
Disposals (616) -  -  (616)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 86 875 -   961

Net book value at 31 March 2021
- Purchased 142 1,068 20,675 21,885
Total at 31 March 2021 142 1,068 20,675 21,885

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
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17. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

17.5

Trust onl y

Plant & 
Machinery

Information 
technology On-SoFP PFI Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2021 228 1,943 20,736 22,907
Additions - Purchased -  -  440 440
Revaluations -  -  720 720
Disposals -  -  -  -  
At 31 March 2022 228 1,943 21,896 24,067

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2021 86 875 -  961
Provided during the period 23 388 594 1,005
Revaluation -  -  (594) (594)
Disposals -  -  -  -  
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2022 109 1,263 -  1,372

Net book value at 31 March 2022
- Purchased 119 680 21,896 22,695
Total at 31 March 2022 119 680 21,896  22,695

Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2020 844 1,943 20,622 23,409
Additions - purchased -  -  449 449
Revaluation -  -  (396) (396)
Disposals (616) -  -  (616)
At 31 March 2021 228 1,943 20,675 22,846

Accumulated depreciation 
At 1 April 2020 679 486 -  1,165
Provided during the period 23 389 573 985
Revaluation -  -  (573) (573)
Disposals (616) -  -  (616)
Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2021 86 875 -   961

Net book value at 31 March 2021
- Purchased 142 1,068 20,675 21,885
Total at 31 March 2021 142 1,068 20,675 21,885

18. Investments

Non-current
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Carrying value at 1 April 7,893 6,319 -  -  
Additions 7,415 4,961 -  -  
Fair value (losses)/ gains taken to I & E 438 1,417 -  -  
Fair value movements taken to OCI -  -  -  -  
Disposals (7,521) (4,804) -  -  
Carrying value at 31 March 8,225 7,893 -  -  

Current
Financial assets designated at amortised cost 337 113 -  -  

Non-current investments represents an investment portfolio managed by HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited on behalf of the
charitable fund.

Current asset investments are the cash balances held by HSBC Private Bank (UK) Limited on behalf of the charitable fund
and represents dividend income, interest income and the proceeds of fixed asset investment disposals which have not yet
been reinvested.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Net Book Value of Assets Held Under Finance Leases (continued)

Group Trust

Page 37



18. Investments (continued)

Fair value measurement of investments 

19. Other financial assets

Non-curren t
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Carrying value at 1 Apri l 2,395 2,299 4,551



19. Other financial assets (continued)

20. Inventories

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Drugs 1,395 1,329 1,395 1,329
Consumables 4,554 4,275 4,554 4,275
Laundry 1,628 1,405 -  -  
Other 362 625 362 446

7,939 7,634 6,311 6,050

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period 54,095 45,963 52,697 44,726

Details of the loan to Odstock Medical Limited is as follows:
During 2021-22 the Trust made a loan to its wholly owned subsidiary company, Odstock Medical Limited, to
assist with its working capital requirements. The loan repayments commenced in November 2021. Interest is
payable at 3.5% above the Bank of England base rate and is capitalised and added to the principal sum.

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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In March 2016 the Trust made a loan to its then wholly owned subsidiary company, Sterile Supplies Limited.
The intention was for this sum to be used to help finance a joint venture arrangement with a third party, which
will deliver cost savings into the future. Until the joint venture agreement was finalised and formal agreement
signed, the loan remained repayable on demand.

During 2016-17 Sterile Supplies Limited became the joint venture vehicle between the Trust and a third party,
Steris Plc (Registered in Ireland (formerly Synergy Health Plc)). As part of the joint venture agreement the
Trust ceded control of Sterile Supplies Limited and the loan agreement was formalised as long term.



21. Receivables

21.1 Amounts falling due after more than one year :

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

656 762 656 762
656 762 656 762

656 762 656 762

21.2 Amounts falling due within one year :

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Contract receivables 11,079 9,445 9,900 9,124
Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets (954) (1,351) (954) (1,351)
Prepayments (non-PFI) 2,930 3,262 2,930 3,262
PDC dividend receivable 31 57 31 57
VAT receivable 950 627 950 627

9 -  9 -  
Other receivables 166 37 237 64

14,211 12,077 13,103 11,783

3,464 2,179 3,464 2,179



22. Cash and cash equivalent s

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at beginning of year 31,169 16,145 22,309 9,087 
Net change in year 8,137 15,024 8,510 13,222 
Balance at end of year 39,306 31,169 30,819 22,309 

Made up of:
Cash with Government Banking Service 30,791 22,201 30,791 22,201 
Cash at commercial banks and in hand 8,515 8,968 28 108 
Cash and cash equivalents as in balance shee t 39,306 31,169 30,819 22,309 
Bank overdrafts -  -  -  -  
Cash and cash equivalents as in cash flow statemen t 39,306 31,169 30,819 22,309 

23. Trade and other payable s

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

18,942 11,522 17,614 10,200
Capital payable 9,289 4,554 9,289 4,554

2,514 1,693 2,514 1,693
Receipts in advance 2,140 3,057 2,140 3,057
Social security and other taxes payable 4,115 3,754 4,115 3,754
Pay and pensions related 5,449 5,648 5,449 5,648

3,622 6,499 3,634 6,458
46,071 36,727 44,755 35,364

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 2,845 3,076 2,845 3,076

All Trade and other payables are current liabilities.

Other

Group Trust

Amounts falling due within one year:

Trade payables

Accruals and deferred income

Included in 'Other' payables is £1.2m (2021: £0.9m) potential exposure following change in Vat guidance, £0.9m
(2021: £0.9m) funds due as an agent on an education training contract, £0.3m (2021: £nil) Public Dividend
capital repayable.

TrustGroup
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24. Borrowings

Group
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Obligations under finance leases 458 434 999 292
Amounts due under PFI (note 30) 612 526 15,564 16,175
Capital loans from Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 644 648 1,582 2,213
Revenue support / working capital loans from DHSC -  -  -  -  

1,714 1,608  18,145 18,680

Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Obligations under finance leases 290 434 -  292
Amounts due under PFI (note 30) 612 526 15,564 16,175
Capital loans from Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 644 648 1,582 2,213
Revenue support / working capital loans from DHSC -  -  -  -  

1,546 1,608  17,146 18,680

Amounts payable under finance leases:

Group

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 502 459 458 434
Between one and five years 1,172 306 999 292
After five years -  -  -  -  

1,674 765 1,457 726
Less finance charges allocated to future periods (217) (39)

1,457 726

Included within:
Current borrowings 458 434
Non-current borrowings 999 292

1,457 726

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Minimum lease 
payments

Present value of 
minimum lease 

payments

The capital loan from the Department of Health and Social Care is unsecured and for a 10 year period, repayable in equal
instalments commencing on 18 May 2016. Interest is payable on the loan at a rate of 1.64% pa. 

Current Non-current

The Trust finance leases relate to the purchase of medical equipment and hardware infrastructure. Both are for a term of 5
years. For the year ended 31 March 2022 the effective borrowing rates were 3.4% and 5.1% respectively. Interest rates
are fixed at the contract date.

Department of Health and Social Care revenue support/ working capital loans taken out during 2017-18 and 2018-19 were
repayable at the end of three year periods from the inception date of each loan; interest accruing at 1.5% - 3.5% per
annum and payable twice yearly. However, on 1 April 2020 DHSC, NHSE and NHSI implemented reforms to the NHS cash
regime. During 2020/21 existing DHSC interim revenue and capital loans as at 31 March 2020 were extinguished and
replaced with the issue of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) to allow the repayment.

Current Non-current

The additional lease liabilities at a Group level are due to a finance lease agreement for new laundry equipment for
Salisbury Trading Limited.
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24. Borrowings (continued)

Trust

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 306 459 291 434
Between one and five years -  306 -  292
After five years -  -  -  -  

306 765 291 726
Less finance charges allocated to future periods (15) (39)

291 726

Included within:
Current borrowings 291 434
Non-current borrowings -  292

291 726

25. Provisions for liabilities and charges

Group and Trust
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

Pensions - early departure costs 13 19 25 13
Pensions - injury benefits 24 23 214 236
Legal claims 973 453 -  -  
Clinician pension tax reimbursement 9 -  656 762
Other 215 476 -  245

1,234 971 895 1,256

Pensions -
Early

departure
costs

Pensions -
Injury

benefits

Legal
claims

Clinician
pension

tax

Other Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

A



25. Provisions for liabilities and charges (continued )

26. Capital and other commitment s

Capital commitments - Group and Trus t

27. Contingent liabilitie s

28. Related Party Transaction s

Income Expenditure Receivable



29. Private Finance Initiative Schemes (PFI)

29.1 PFI schemes deemed to be on-Statement of Financial Position

29.2 PFI scheme - Char ge to o peratin g expense in Statement of Com prehensive Income

2022 2021
£000 £000

1,114 1,110
594 573

1,708 1,683

29.3 PFI scheme - Anal ysis of amounts payable to service concession o perato r

2022 2021
£000 £000

1,098 1,130
526 479

1,114 1,110
440 449
846 809

4,024 3,977

29.4

2022 2021
£000 £000

Due within one year 1,166 1,114
Due within 2 to 5 years 4,794 4,500
Due after 5 years 11,190 11,845

17,150 17,459

Imputed finance lease obligations comprise:

2022 2021 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000

1,673 1,624 612 526 
6,936 6,868 3,159 2,895 

16,761 18,501 12,405 13,280 

25,370 26,993 16,176 16,701 
Less: interest element (9,194) (10,292)
Total 16,176 16,701 

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022
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Rentals due thereafter

Depreciation of PFI asset

Amounts included within operating expenses in respect of the 'service' element of PFI 
schemes deemed to be on-Statement of Financial Position

Net charge to operating expenses

Minimum lease payments Present value of 
minimum lease payments

Group and Trust

Grou p and Trust

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator

Interest
Repayment of finance lease liability
Service element

Rentals due within 2 to 5 years

Capital lifecycle maintenance

Annual commitments under Private Finance Transactions - On Statement of Financial Position

The annual charge will be indexed each year.  Indexation will be increased in line with the Retail Price Index.

The Trust is committed to make the following service payments on the PFI:

Rentals due within one year

Contingent rent

Terms of the Arrangement - the unitary payment is comprised of two elements, an Availability fee which is fixed for the
duration of the contract and a service fee which is subject to indexation based upon 'the Retail Prices Index (RPI) All
items'. At the end of the project term the Agreement will terminate with no compensation payable. In the event of re-
financing of the PFI the Trust is entitled to receive half of the re-financing cash flow benefits.

Contract start date: 3 March 2004
Contract end date: 31 January 2036
The PFI scheme provides modern clinical buildings for patient services 
At the end of the contract term the hospital buildings revert back to the Trust 
There were no changes to the terms and conditions of the PFI agreement 
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29. Private Finance Initiative Schemes (PFI) (continued )

29.5 Total future payments committed in respect of PFI
2022 2021
£000 £000

Total 70,510 71,223
of which due:

4,329 4,025
18,424 17,130
47,757 50,068

Total 70,510 71,223

30. Financial instruments

30.1

30.2 Liquidit y risk

30.3 Interest-rate risk

30.4 Liquidity and interest risk tables

As at 31 March 2022

Less than 1-3 3 months 1-2 2-5 over 5
one month months to 1 year years years years Discount Total

% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

3.4 - 5.1 16 33 453 195 586 391 (217) 1,457
6.5 139 278 1,256 1,718 5,218 16,761 (9,194) 16,176

1.64 -  334 331 655 966 -  (73) 2,213

-  30,745 -  -  -  -  -  -  30,745

As at 31 March 2021

Less than 1-3 3 months 1-2 2-5 over 5
one month months to 1 year years years years Discount Total

% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

3.4 - 5.1 -  -  459 306 -  -  (39) 726
6.5 135 270 1,219 1,673 5,195 18,501 (10,292) 16,701

1.64 -  339 336 665 1,621 -  (117) 2,844

-  17,769 -  -  -  -  -  -  17,769

Weighted 
average 
effective 

interest rate

Weighted 
average 
effective 

interest rate

Finance lease obligations
PFI obligations
DHSC capital loan

Fixed rate

Floating rate
Trade and other payables

Floating rate
Trade and other payables

Finance lease obligations

DHSC capital loan
PFI obligations

Fixed rate

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

IFRS 7 and IFRS 9 require disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an
entity faces in undertaking its activities. The main source of income for the Group is under contracts from commissioners in respect of
healthcare services. Due to the way that the Commissioners are financed, the Group is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by
business entities. Also financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of the listed
companies to which IFRS 7 mainly applies. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being
held to change the risks facing the Group in undertaking its activities.

The Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being in the UK and sterling 
based.  The Group has no overseas operations although the charity holds a small number of investments denominated in United States dollars 
and Euros, these are immaterial and, as a result, the Group has low exposure to currency fluctuations.



30. Financial instruments (continued )

30.5 Credit risk

30.6

Group

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 10,557 - -  10,557
Other investments / financial assets 2,497 - -  2,497

33,448 - -  33,448
Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 6,197 8,225 -  14,422

52,699 8,225 -  60,924

Group

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 8,512 -  -  8,512
Other investments / financial assets 2,395 -  -  2,395

25,415 -  -  25,415
Consolidated NHS Charitable fund financial assets 6,248 7,893 -  14,141

42,570 7,893 -  50,463

Trust

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 9,848 - -  9,848
Other investments / financial assets 6,192 - -  6,192

30,819 - -  30,819
46,859 - -  46,859

Trust

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value 

through I&E

Held at fair 
value through 

OCI

Total 
carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets 8,599 -  -  8,599



30. Financial Instruments (continued )

30.7

Group
Held at 

amortised cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 2,226 -  2,226
Obligations under finance leases 1,457 -  1,457
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 16,176 -  16,176
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 39,486 -  39,486
Provisions under contract 1,820 -  1,820
Total at 31 March 2022 61,165 -  61,165

Group
Held at 

amortised cost

H

amort6.,85.st

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrtal  

value
£000 £000 £000 



30. Financial Instruments (continued )

Trust

Held at 
amortised 

cost

Held at fair 
value through 

I&E
Total carrying 

value
£000 £000 £000 

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 2,861 -  2,861
Obligations under finance leases 726 -  726
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 16,701 -  16,701
Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 27,147 -  27,147
Provisions under contract 2,227 -  2,227
Total at 31 March 2021 49,662 -  49,662

31 March 
2022 31 March 2021

31 March 
2022 31 March 2021

£000 £000 £000 £000 
In one year or less 43,251 33,599 42,262 32,282 
In more than one year but not more than five years 9,836 9,567 9,836 9,567 
In more than five years 17,549 19,649 17,549 19,649 
Total 70,636 62,815 69,647 61,498 

31. Third Party Asset s

32. Investment in subsidiar y

32.1 Odstock Medical Limited

Trust Trust
2022 2021

Shares at cost £'000 £'000

At 31 March -  5

The Trust established the company and received an interest in the company equal to the fair value of assets on its formation.

The Trust held £0.5k cash at bank and in hand at 31 March 2022 (2021: £0.1k) which relates to monies held by the NHS
Trust on behalf of patients.  This has been excluded from the cash at bank and in hand figure reported in the accounts.

Group Trust

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 2022

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust established, following Department of Health approval, a subsidiary company, Odstock
Medical Limited (registered in England), to market and develop a technology created at Salisbury District Hospital. The
technology assists patients to obtain increased mobility following illnesses which reduce their muscular co-ordination. The
company was established in August 2005 and commenced trading on 1 April 2006. Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust owns
70% of Odstock Medical Limited.

The Trust's charity, Salisbury District Hospital Charitable Fund, owns a further 18% of Odstock Medical Limited.

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2021

Maturity of financial liabilities - undiscounted future cash flows

In the year the Trust charged the goodwill on the purchase of shares from former employees of the subsidiary to expenditure.



32. Investment in subsidiar



34. Movements on Public Dividend Capita l

Group and Trus t 2022 2021
£000 £000



38. Reserves

Public dividend capital

Revaluation reserv e

Income and expenditure reserv e

Minority interes t

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust - Consolidated Financial Statements For The Year To 31 March 202 2

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the time
the establishment of the predecessor NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued to Trusts by the Department of
Health and Social Care. A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the Trust, is payable to the Department of Health
and Social Care as the public dividend capital dividend..

Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and to the extent
that, they reverse impairments previously recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are recognised in operating
income. Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged to the revaluation reserve to the extent that a
previous gain was recognised unless the downward movement represents a clear consumption of economic benefit or a
reduction in service potential.

The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses and deficits of the Group and the Trust.

Minority interest relates to the ownership stake in the subsidiary companies which is under 50% of the total shares in terms of
voting rights and hence doesn't exercise control of the company.
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